PREMIER INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND STRATEGY COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE

1. Constitution

- 1.1 The corporate governance and strategy committee (the **Committee**) was constituted at a full meeting of the board of directors (the **Board**) of Premier Investment Holdings Limited (the **Company**) held on [date] 2025.
- 1.2 The Committee is a committee of the Board from which it derives its authority and to which it regularly reports.
- 1.3 The Committee may sub-delegate any or all of its powers and authority as it thinks fit to one or more of its members or the Company Secretary.

2. Role

The role of the Committee is to ensure that (i) the Company's governance processes are fit for purpose; (ii) the Company has appropriate governance structures and board composition to support its future direction; and (iii) planning and developing the strategy for the Company and its subsidiaries (the **Group**).

3. Membership

- 3.1 The Committee shall comprise at least three (3) directors. The composition of the Committee shall be structured so as to achieve an appropriate balance of recent and relevant experience, taking account of the full range of the Committee's activities.
- 3.2 Appointments to the Committee shall be for a period of up to three (3) years, which may be extended for further periods of up to three (3) years, provided each member still meets the criteria for membership of the Committee.
- 3.3 The Board shall appoint the Committee chair. In the absence of the Committee chair, the remaining members present at a Committee meeting shall elect one of the other independent non-executive directors present to chair the meeting.
- 3.4 Only Committee members have the right to attend and vote in Committee meetings. However, the senior executive officer, chief executive officer, the finance officer and external advisers of each member of the Group may be invited to attend meetings of the Committee. Other non-members may be invited to attend all or part of any meetings as and when appropriate and necessary, with the Committee chair's agreement. The Committee chair shall have the discretion to decide who, other than the Committee members, shall attend and address the Committee meetings. Non-executive directors who are not members of the Committee may be invited by the Committee chair to attend as observers.
- 3.5 The secretary of the Committee shall ascertain at the beginning of each meeting the existence of any conflicts of interest and minute them accordingly.

3.6 A list of members and invitees is listed at Schedule 1 to these Terms of Reference and may be updated as required and directed by the Board.

4. Secretary

The Company Secretary or his or her nominee shall act as the secretary of the Committee.

5. Quorum

- 5.1 The quorum necessary for the transaction of business at a Committee meetings shall be two (2) members present in person or by audio or video conference. If there is difficulty in achieving a quorum, non-executive directors, who are not members of the Committee, may be co-opted as members for individual meetings.
- 5.2 A duly convened meeting of the Committee at which a quorum is present shall be competent to exercise all or any of the authorities, powers and discretions vested in or exercisable by the Committee.

6. Frequency of meetings

The Committee shall meet formally at least three (3) times a year at appropriate times in the Company's reporting and audit cycle and otherwise as required.

7. Notice of meetings

- 7.1 Meetings of the Committee shall be convened by the secretary of the Committee at the request of any of its members.
- 7.2 Unless otherwise agreed, notice of each meeting confirming the venue, time and date of the meeting, together with an agenda of items to be discussed, shall be forwarded to each member of the Committee and any other person required to attend, no later than five (5) working days before the date of the meeting. The agenda shall be circulated together with relevant supporting papers to committee members and to other attendees as appropriate, at the same time.
- 7.3 Ordinarily, the Committee will only send notices, agendas and supporting papers in electronic form or make them available via a portal software platform.

8. Minutes of meetings

- 8.1 The Secretary shall minute the proceedings of all meetings of the Committee, including recording the names of those present and in attendance.
- 8.2 Draft minutes of committee meetings shall be circulated promptly to all members of the Committee. Once approved, the minutes should be circulated to all other members of the Board unless it would be inappropriate to do so in the opinion of the Committee chair.
- 8.3 Final signed copies of the minutes of the meetings should be maintained for the Company's records.

9. Duties

The duties of the Committee are set out below.

9.1 Governance Duties

a. Develop and recommend appropriate policies and procedures to ensure that the Company and the Group have the appropriate governance structures in place and

- recommend revisions as required, to assist it in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities at all levels.
- b. Review annually the adequacy and effectiveness of governance documents including; the Groups' corporate governance charter, policies, procedures, committee terms of reference, Board terms of reference (if any) and making recommendations for change, as appropriate, to the Board.
- c. Advise and make recommendations in relation to the decision making authority of the Board, its Committees and management of the Company.
- d. Advise and make recommendations as appropriate to ensure that the Company is compliant with legislation, regulation, public policy, relevant codes, statutory obligations, in particular in relation to the Abu Dhabi Global Market, the Financial Services Regulatory Authority, and other requirements from applicable external bodies.
- e. Ensure that an external review of the Group's governance structures is conducted every 36 months by organisations / individuals qualified to do so, and that the report from the external reviewer(s) will be sent to the Committee and Board.
- f. Ensure that a performance evaluation of the Board, its committees and the Chair is carried out every twelve (12) months with an external review every three (3) years.
- g. Review annually the time required from Board members. The Board performance evaluation should be used to assess whether Board members are spending enough time to fulfil their duties or have the time to do so.
- h. Be responsible for establishing the selection criteria, selecting, appointing and setting the terms of reference for any governance consultants who may advise the committee within an agreed budget set by the Board.
- i. Work and liaise as necessary with all other Board committees and board and management committees of each member of the Group, as appropriate or as may be required in order for the Committee to discharge its duties hereunder.
- j. Maintain a watching brief for the latest governance developments, best practices, and other opportunities relevant to the Company.
- k. Support the Chair of the Board in the performance of his/her governance duties.

9.2 Planning, objectives and strategy

The Committee shall:

- a. Develop and make recommendations for the objectives and strategy of the Company and the Group to the Board for its approval.
- b. Recommending adjustments to the strategic plan for the Group and the Company outlined above, as needed.
- c. Identify and assess strategic risks and opportunities.
- d. Inform the strategy, laying the foundations and designing the process for the strategy development within the Group.
- e. Ensure the active liaison, coordination and cooperation with and between different parts and entities of the Group to communicate strategic objectives and support implementation and execution of strategy, business plans and fulfilment of its other responsibilities.

- f. Consider and review (and, where it considers appropriate, recommend to the Board):
 - i. all potential acquisitions and disposals of any business or business unit or significant asset by any member of the Group;
 - ii. any proposed merger, joint venture, partnership, profit sharing or similar transaction involving any member of the Group;
 - iii. any proposed investment in any member of the Group by an existing shareholder or a new investor;
 - iv. key strategic projects that require significant capital expenditure; and
 - v. industry developments in the financial services sector in Africa and the Middle East; and
 - vi. any diversification into new markets.

10. Reporting responsibilities

- 10.1 The Committee chair shall report to the Board on its proceedings after each meeting on all matters within its duties and responsibilities. The minutes of all Committee meetings shall, unless in the opinion of the Committee chair it would be inappropriate to do so, be included in the Board papers for a subsequent Board meeting.
- 10.2 The Committee shall make whatever recommendations to the Board it deems appropriate on any area within its remit where action or improvement is needed.
- 10.3 The Committee shall produce a report of its activities to be included in the Company's annual report, which shall include:
 - a. details of the membership of the Committee, number of meetings held and attendance over the course of the year;
 - b. a summary of the role and work of the Committee;
 - c. the significant issues that the Committee considered in relation to the corporate governance of the Company, key strategic decisions, significant capital investments and potential merger, disposal and acquisition activities; and
 - d. any other material issues on which the Board has requested the Committee's consideration.

11. Other matters

The Committee shall:

- 11.1 have access to sufficient resources in order to carry out its duties, including access to the Company Secretary for assistance as required;
- 11.2 be provided with appropriate and timely training, both in the form of an induction programme for new members and on an ongoing basis for all members;
- 11.3 give due consideration to laws and regulations and any other applicable rules, as appropriate;
- 11.4 oversee any investigation of activities which are within its Terms of Reference;
- 11.5 be responsible for co-ordination of the internal and external auditors; and
- 11.6 arrange for periodic reviews of its own performance and, at least annually, review its constitution and Terms of Reference to ensure it is operating at maximum effectiveness and recommend any changes it considers necessary to the Board for approval.

12. Authority

The Committee is authorised:

- 12.1 to seek any information it requires from any employee of the Group in order to perform its duties;
- 12.2 to obtain, at the Company's expense, outside legal or other professional advice on any matter within its Terms of Reference;
- 12.3 to request the attendance of any employee at a meeting of the Committee as and when required; and
- 12.4 to have the right to publish in the Company's annual report details of any issues that cannot be resolved between the Committee and the Board.

13 Voting

- 13.1 Each Committee member shall have one (1) vote which may be cast on matters considered at the meeting. Votes can only be cast by members attending a Committee meeting (whether in person or by audio or video conference).
- 13.2 If a matter that is considered by the Committee is one where a Committee member, either directly or indirectly, has a personal interest, that member shall not be permitted to vote at the meeting.
- 13.3 Except where he or she has a personal interest, the Committee chare shall have a casting vote.
- 13.4The Committee chair may ask any attendees of a Committee meeting to leave the meeting to allow discussions of matters relating to them.

Adopted at the Board meeting of the Company on [date] 2025.

Schedule 1: The Board Members and Invitees

Committee Members	Invitees (as required)
Director	Finance Officer of any member of the Group
Director	Senior Executive Officer of any member of the Group
Director	Chief Executive Officer of any member of the Group
	External advisers